
 

UNITED STATES 
NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION 

REGION II 
245 PEACHTREE CENTER AVE., NE, SUITE 1200 

ATLANTA, GEORGIA  30303-1257 

 

 

April 30, 2010 
 

 
Mr. Sean Fuller 
Chief Operating Officer and Facility Manager 
Global Nuclear Fuel – Americas, L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 780, Mail Code J20 
Wilmington, NC  28402 
 
SUBJECT: NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION INSPECTION REPORT  

NO. 70-1113/2010-005  
 
Dear Mr. Fuller: 
 
This refers to the inspection conducted at your facility in Wilmington, North Carolina, from  
March 29 through April 1, 2010.  The purpose of the inspection was to determine whether 
activities authorized by the license were conducted safely and in accordance with Nuclear 
Regulatory Commission (NRC) requirements.  At the conclusion of the inspection on April 1, 
2010, the inspector discussed the findings with members of your staff. 
 
The results of the inspection are documented on the enclosed NRC Form 591FF, “SAFETY 
INSPECTION REPORT.”   No violations were identified during the inspection of your licensed 
activities.  Please retain the original form for your files. 
 
In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter and its 
enclosure will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC Public 
Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the NRC Web 
site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html.   
 
If you have any questions, please call me at (404) 997-4721.  
 
      Sincerely, 
 
      /RA/ 
 
      Daniel W. Rich, Chief 
      Fuel Facility Inspection Branch 3 
      Division of Fuel Facility Inspection 
 
Docket No. 70-1113 
License No. SNM-1097 
 
Enclosure:  NRC Form 591FF Parts 1 and 3 
 
cc w/encl:  (See page 2)



S. Fuller 2  

 

cc w/encl: 
Scott Murray, Manager 
Facility Licensing 
Global Nuclear Fuels – Americas, L.L.C. 
Electronic Mail Distribution 
 
Beverly Hall, Chief 
Radiation Protection Section 
N.C. Department of Environmental Commerce & Natural Resources 
Electronic Mail Distribution 
 
Distribution w/encl: 
D. Rich, RII 
R. Gibson, RII 
P. Habighorst, NMSS 
M. Adams, NMSS 
N. Baker, NMSS 
PUBLIC 
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RC FORM 591FF PART 1 
(12-2007) 
10 CFR 2.201 

 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

INSPECTION REPORT 
1.  LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER/LOCATION INSPECTED: 2.  NRC/REGIONAL OFFICE: 

Global Nuclear Fuels – Americas, L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 780 
Wilmington, NC  28402           

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Region II 
245 Peachtree Center Ave., NE, Suite 1200 
Atlanta, GA 30303-1257 

REPORT NO: 2010-005 

3.  DOCKET NUMBER: 4.  LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 5.  DATE(S) OF INSPECTION: 

70-1113 SNM-1097 March 29 through April 1, 2010 
 

Enclosure  

LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER: 

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license or certificate as they relate to safety and/or 
safeguards and to compliance with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license 
or certificate.  The inspection consisted of selective examinations of procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, 
and observations by the inspector.  The inspection findings are as follows: 

 1.  Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified. 

 2.  Previous violation(s) closed. 

 3.  Reported events reviewed 

 

4.  The violation(s), specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being 
cited because they were self-identified, non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the 
remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise discretion, were satisfied. 
Non-Cited Violation(s) was/were discussed involving the following requirement(s) and Corrective Action(s): 

 

5.  During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of 
NRC requirements and are being cited. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to 
posting in accordance with 10 CFR 19.11. 
(Violations and Corrective Actions) 

 
 

 

LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER STATEMENT OF CORRECTIVE ACTIONS FOR ITEM 5, ABOVE 
 

 I hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the inspector will be taken to correct the violation(s) identified.  This 
statement of corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective 
steps which will be taken, date when full compliance will be achieved).  I understand that no further written response to the NRC will be 
required, unless specifically requested. 

Title Printed Name Signature Date

LICENSEE/CERTIFICATE 
HOLDER REPRESENTATIVE 

   

NRC INSPECTOR R. Gibson             /RA/ C. Cramer for   4/29/10 



NRC FORM 591FF PART 3 
(12-2007) 
10 CFR 2.201 

 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

INSPECTION REPORT 
1.  LICENSEE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER/LOCATION INSPECTED: 2.  NRC/REGIONAL OFFICE: 

Global Nuclear Fuels – Americas, L.L.C. 
P.O. Box 780 
Wilmington, NC  28402           

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Region II 
245 Peachtree Center Ave., NE, Suite 1200 
Atlanta, GA 30303-1257 

REPORT NO: 2010-005 

3.  DOCKET NUMBER: 4.  LICENSE OR CERTIFICATE HOLDER NUMBER: 5.  DATE(S) OF INSPECTION: 

70-1113 SNM-1097 March 29 through April 1, 2010 

 

Enclosure 

6.  INSPECTOR(S): R. Gibson 

7.  INSPECTION PROCEDURES USED:  88025  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

 

Summary of Plant Status 
 
The Global Nuclear Fuel facility converts uranium hexafluoride into uranium dioxide and fabricates fuel 
assemblies for use in commercial nuclear power reactors.  During the inspection period, the plant was shut 
down for a scheduled maintenance outage.  This routine, announced inspection included review of the plant 
maintenance and surveillance of safety equipment.  The inspection involved observation of work activities, a 
review of selected records, and interviews with plant personnel.  The inspection evaluated the following 
aspects of the licensee program as outlined below: 
 
Maintenance/Surveillance of Safety Equipment - 88025 
 
• The inspector interviewed personnel and reviewed records for periodic maintenance and functional tests to 

ensure the adequacy of work orders and maintenance procedures.  The licensee performed annual shut-
down and lid removal inspection and weighing of the media for the gadolinium vibromill, the dry scrap 
recovery vibromill, and the gadolinium dry scrap recovery vibromill.  Also, the licensee performed the 
monthly maintenance inspection of the 1 ½ ton crane on the third floor of the dry conversion process area, 
the annual maintenance (e.g., replacement of rotating parts-trunnion, wheels and sprocket) on the dry 
scrap recovery furnace, and replacement of the mixing screw (auger) on Line 1 blended powder granulator.  
The inspector determined that maintenance workers demonstrated adequate knowledge of the work orders 
and procedures, and that maintenance and inspection results met acceptance criteria.  No significant 
issues were identified. 

 
• The inspector observed field activities associated with annual functional tests of the automatic shutdown of 

vaporization, conversion and the hydrogen fluoride building processes.  No issues of safety significance 
were identified.  The inspector discussed and reviewed with maintenance supervisors and operators the 
work orders for the annual calibration and peak verification of the hydrogen fluoride pipe detectors at the 
HF building, and the work orders and radiation survey results for the annual clean-out and inventory of 
material in the discharge vents for the dry scrap recovery vibromill, the dry scrap recovery transfer station, 
and the vessel vent for the vibromill.  No significant issues were identified. 

 
• The inspector reviewed the licensee’s unusual incident reports (UIRs) related to maintenance and 

surveillance that had been entered into the corrective action program.  The UIRs reviewed were resolved in 
a timely manner with adequate, documented, corrective actions.  Also, the inspector reviewed maintenance 
records for various equipment designated as items relied on for safety (IROFS) in dry conversion and the 
gadolinium areas.  The inspector noted the work orders were completed within the required periodicity 
specified by the maintenance work management system (MAXIMO).  The inspector also noted that the 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY (Continued) 

 

NRC FORM 591FF PART 3 (12-2007)  Enclosure  

work orders contained adequate instructions to perform calibrations of the IROFS.  No significant safety 
issues were identified. 

 
• The inspector reviewed the corrective actions that the licensee implemented in response to Violation 70-

1113/2009-006-02, which concerned failure to submit a complete summary of changes to the integrated 
safety analysis (ISA) Summary as required by 10 CFR 70.72 (d)(2).  The licensee revised the ISA 
Summary change table to include a description of the change and the reason for the change.  The revised 
change table was submitted to the NRC.  The licensee informed the inspector that future changes made to 
the ISA Summary will be reviewed for completeness and accuracy, and a second verification will be 
conducted prior to submittal to the NRC.  This violation is considered closed. 

 
• The inspector reviewed the licensee corrective actions for inspector follow-up item (IFI) 70-1113/2009-009-

02 which was in response to event No. 45491, related to inspectors’ review of newly identified IROFS.  The 
licensee documented this issue as a UIR in their corrective action program, revised the ISA, designated 
necessary IROFS, and trained operators on these IROFS.  This IFI is considered closed.          

 
Exit Meeting Summary 
 
The inspection scope and results were summarized on Thursday, April 1, 2010, with members of your staff.  
The inspector asked the licensee staff whether any materials examined during the inspection should be 
considered proprietary.  No proprietary information was identified. 
 
Key Points of Contact 
 
Name Title 
J. Reynolds Manager, Fuel Cycle Environmental Health & Safety 
S. Murray Manager, Licensing & Liabilities 
P. Ollis Licensing Engineer, Licensing & Liabilities 
J. DeGolyer Criticality/Radiological Safety Engineer 
B. Beard FMO Maintenance 
 
List of Items Opened, Closed, Discussed 
 
Item Number Status  Description 
NOV 70-1113/2009-006-02 Closed Failure to submit a complete summary of changes to the ISA 

Summary as required by 10 CFR 70.72 (d)(2) 
IFI 70-1113/2009-009-02 Closed Licensee’s verification of newly identified administrative IROFS 
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